PRESIDENT JUDGE CARLUCCIO FINALLY RESPONDS

After contacting Judge Carluccio about the barbaric and inhumane guardianship scam on my Mother
twice in 2023 and again in February 2025, she finally sent me a reply “under advisement”. | do not know what
that means. _

Carluccio also ¢¢’s judge Murphy, who is a judge in orphans court. Orphans court was where weitheimer
was when she allowed the guardianship scam to start on my Mother when Mother was 96. The massive
corruption in orphans court pertaining to guardianship has been known for decades. For over 25 years,
Facebook has a massive site called “Shenanigans in the Montgomery County Court”. The guardianship scam
involves those type of judges in orphans court, past and present, and has been well documented.
Weilheimer’s husband is chief legal counsel for the Philadelphia inquirer and kills all stories that deal with
corrupt judges and their scam in the courthouse. Weilheimer is good friends with lorie Shapiro, wife of
governor josh Shapiro. It was he who got weilheimer her job with a federal court.

| have been documenting the on corruption and scam in orphans court pertaining to guardianship
corruption, its fake “evaluations” and the barbaric and inhumane treatment by that mafia on the families and
their loved ones for over 3 years in this website since that mafia became “owners” of my Mother for her
assets in May 2021.

it will be interesting what Judge Carluccio actually does. Maybe DA steele will finaily start opening cases
for those victims and their families of guardianship corruption. So far, steele has refused to do so to protect
those corrupt judges.
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February 24, 2025

Arthur Herring, I
258 N. West End Boulevard, #153
Quakertown, PA 18951

Dear Mr. Herring:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letter of February 13, 2025. The matter will be
taken under advisement.

ARLUCCIO
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cc:  The Honorable Lois E. Murphy, Administrative Judge Orphan’s Court Division
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WWW.JANEHERRING.NET

February 13 2025
Hon. Judge Carluccio, President Judge,

My late Mother, Jane Herring, was killed by guardianship corruption with morphine. Mother finally
died on July 2 2024 at age of 99. Mother died unconscious from morphine, alone, in her tiny bed, at the low
rated nursing home, in a extremely slow, painful, barbaric and inhumane death by starvation and dehydration.
Mother never got the dignity of hospice and any last wishes. The guardianship “mafia” denied Mother the
right to die in her beautiful home of 21 years, with her much loved possessions and with me. I sent you a
detailed letter, certified mail, two years ago about this guardianship scam on my then 97 year old Mother, but
you never responded.

Many, many elderly peopie have been victims (slaves) by various corrupt orphan court judges for
decades for guardian “mafias” only for the victims assets. Victims die in nursing homes, broke and drugged. Go
1o You Tube, Googie guardianship corruption to see many thousands of such horror stories on many victims
and their families. Go to Net Flix, the movie “i care a lot” is based on what happens in real life by corrupt
judges, guardians, lawyers and psychologists.

Go to www.janeherring.net to see my massive amount of documents, pictures, emails and videos
proving the scam on my late, much loved Mother. The U.S. Senate recently confirmed Judge Gail Weilheimer,
Orphans Court, Montgomery County, PA to be a federal judge. Weilheimer was in charge of one such
“guardian mafia” that “owned” Mother only for Mother’s vast assets.

| used my 41 years doing criminal investigations nationwide to get the evidence to prove the
guardianship scam on Mother and also on many, many other families by various judges in the courthouse. But,

ivionigomery Couniy DA, Sieeie, refused 10 upen iheir cases o prosecuie. Sieeie louk a piciure of me
protesting about a year ago with his name on my protest sign. Weilheimer also had a picture taken of me with
her name on another one of my protest signs. in addition, | and others contacted the Ft. Washington FBI office
several times for them to open up cases on our loved ones being victims in guardianship frauds. That FBI office claimed
the cases were civil matters, not criminal. But, in December 2023, guardian Gloria Byars was convicted of stealing about

$1 million from her 105 victims {clients). The Chester County DA, IRS, DOJ and the Philadelphia FBt office prosecuted
Byars. Why did the FB| office in Ft. Washington refuse to open cases?

This Orphans Court corruption has been documented for about 25 years on a Facebook website called
Shenanigans in the Montgomery County Court. | tried every day, for almost 3 years, to get my Mother back
home and out of the claws of this guardian mafia. The scam started on May 18, 2021 just two days after
Mother’s 96 birthday by her 70 year oid daughter, jsh. ish filed a petition of guardianship to own and controi
Mother and Mother’s vast assets for herseif. Ish admitted during the petition hearing she never discussed the
petition with Mother because jsh did not think her petition was that important. Weilheimer and jaskowiak
(Mother’s lawyer appointed by Weilheimer) always refused to let Mother come to court to speak for herself.
Mother was not allowed to hire her own lawyer who she could trust. | had no more money left to pay another
lawyer, so 1 was in court, pro se, for almost 3 years filing petitions, replying to them, exhibits, etc, to protect
Mother and to get her back home. Judges Weilheimer/Sterling always ruled against me. Weilheimer always
refused to recuse herself for her openly hatred of me, laskowiak refused to defend and protect Mother during
the petition hearing for guardianship because he WANTED Mother to be guardinized for Mother’s assets for
this mafia. jaskowiak never taiked or discussed anything with iviother as he musi do as her iawyer as siated in
the PA Rules of Conduct for lawyers. Jaskowiak always attacked me in court and in his petitions. Jsh soon
became part of this “guardian mafia”. These mafia’s of corrupt judges, corrupt guardians, corrupt lawyers,
corrupt psychologists and many others have existed for many decades in Montgomery County courts.



This guardian mafia, who owned Mother, had two corrupt judges: Weilheimer and Sterling, various
corrupt guardians, their corrupt lawyers, jaskowiak, a corrupt psychologist, Ledakis, a corrupt “care manager”
Klock (known for stealing and over drugging her victims), jsh and various paid liars {monitors) who were hired
by weilheimer/jaskowiak to write lies about me to use to restrict/deny visits with Mother. In addition, the
guardians and their lawyers also would make up lies accusing me of harming Mother, but they never asked
Mother and never allowed her in court to speak for herself, including when subpoenas were filed. Mother and
| always had a extremely close and loving relationship. i

This mafia forced Mother to live as a prisoner in a low rated nursing home, in a locked in section, in a
very tiny room and her bed was no wider than a pillow. Mother was forced to live for 3 years in solitary
confinement, in a sensory deprived environment, with people with mental and behavior problems. Mother
had NO mental and NO behavior probiems. Mother was not allowed outside food from me, even though
Mother had NO food allergies and NO diet restrictions. ! found dead mice in her room. Mother had no useable
TV, no visits alowed to me/Mother on holidays and special other days: birthdays, Mother’s Day, Valentine’s
Day, efc. For 3 years, | kept trying to get the guardians and jaskowiak 1o put a tabie in Mother’s room, but they
refused for no reason. Almast no visits were allowed to me as punishment by judges Weilheimer/Sterling,
jaskowiak, the guardians and their lawyers because | was constantly exposing their scam in different ways. My
efforts to expose the scam included protesting at the courthouse and at jaskowiak’s house on a public
sidewalk, | was on a weekly, nationwide radio show only about guardianship corruption exposing the scam on
Mother for almost 2 years, my massive website www.protectmyparents.us newsletters, etc. Mother was
given torn blankets, stained sheets {(when Mother got sheets), stained towels, no phone, no mail, no ministers
allowed, not allowed outside or into society and not allowed to go back to visit her large home of 21 years
with her much loved possessions of almost 100 years. Mother had to wear other people’s clothes because the
staff never put name tags on people’s clothes being washed.

People in prison, for all types of crimes, have more priviledges than Mother. Why? POW’s have mare
priviledges in the Geneva Convention than Mother. Why? Mother still had a extremely happy, healthy and
fulfilling life, before guardianship, after her husband of 70 years died in 2013. Mother was still driving her car
safely when the scam was started on her.

During the petition hearing, | exposed the psychologist, Ledakis, and his report claiming Mother was
“incapacitated” as a total fraud. But, Weilheimer/guardianship mafia accepted it as fact. Weilheimer hired
Ledakis many times in this fraud because he always said what they wanted in his reports with lies, especially
against me, because | exposed him as a fraud and the many others in the guardianship scam on Mother.
Jaskowiak only saw Mother twice, in 3 years, after she was falsely declared “incapacitated” by Weilheimer on
August 6 2021. But, Jaskowiak was filing and replying to petitions as if he was in constant, daily contact with
Mother and doing what she would want. The PA Rules of Conduct for lawyers demands a lawyer always do
what the client wants or quits. Jaskowiak did what was in HIS best interest, NEVER for Mother. Weilheimer,
sterling, jaskowiak, the guardians and their lawyers ALL ignored federal and state laws of guardianship and the
rights of the AiP {aiiedged incapacitated person} and how they are to be treated and live. Weiiheimer and
sterling appointed various guardians, their lawyers, “monitors”, “care manager” and Ledakis to Mother just to
drain Mother’s assets. All of them were picked/approved by Weilheimer/Sterling/laskowiak. Weilheimer
assigned lawyer Fenstermacher in May 2022 as guardian of estate to Mother. Fenstermacher proved he was
also deep in this mafia. | asked Fenstermacher, in court in early 2024, when was the last time he saw or talked
to Mother. He said he had not seen or talked to Mother for 4 years, including his almost two years as guardian
of estate. He said he thought his only job was to sign invoice checks for this “mafia”. | asked him what about
waste and fraud in those invoices. Fenstermacher admitted he did not care about waste and fraud. Mother
had many, many hundreds of thousands of doliars stolen because Fenstermacher did not care about waste




and fraud. None of those guardians, monitors, lawyers, “care manager” or the staff at Manatawny Manor ever
cared about Mother’s medical, mental and physical wellbeing and especially, her happiness.

Mother had NO financial problems. She had NO medical problems. She always went to her doctor’s
appointments. She never wrote checks to strangers or for strange amounts. She still drove her car safely at 96.
Her taxes and bills were always paid on time. She cocked all of the meals. Her house was neat and clean
because she and 1 did the house cleaning. Mother was living on social security and only a small part of my late
father’s vast savings he made during his life because Mother did not waste money. Mother did not use a cane,
no walker, no dentures, no hearing aid and no diapers. Mother was happy, healthy and enjoyed life every day.

In Pennsylvania, basically, anyone can be a guardian of person and/or estate. Guardian of Person has
responsibility of the victim’s life, health and location to live. Guardian of Estate has responsibility of the
victim’s assets to spend/invest in any way they want. There is NO LIMIT how many clients (victims} either
guardian of person or of estate can “own”: 10, 100 or 1,000. Guardianship corruption is human slavery until
the victim dies. Guardian’s charge what they want per hour. Corrupt guardians hire their friends and lawyers
at the victim’s expense, but there are NO iaws or ruies for them to do so. Those hired “kick back” money to
the people who hired them. The guardians use the victim’s money to pay the guardian’s lawyers to protect the
guardian. Guardians can reduce/restrict/ban family member visits from their loved ones for life. Those corrupt
guardians use visits as a punishment to a family if the family show the guardians are ignoring the welfare and
happiness of their loved one. Corrupt judges protect the “mafia” and always approve their invoices, approve
their petitions and DENY petitions to the family’s fawyers.

When a person files a petition for guardianship on someone, if the victim has a lot of money/house, a
corrupt judge will assign a corrupt lawyer to the victim. That corrupt lawyer will not defend the victim so the
victim will be guardianized. The corrupt judge assigns a corrupt psychologist, who uses his “evaluation” to
prove “incapacitation”. But, those “evaluations” have never been independentiy proven accuraie. The corrupt
judge will assign corrupt guardians to the victim. They will sell the victim’s home very cheap to a friend who
resells it at full value. The “mafia” keeps the profit. There are many federal and state laws that give many 7
rights to the victim, but are always ignored by these “mafias”. Weilheimer/Sterling banned me, with the threat
of prison If | ever discussed Mother’s case with her, if 1 told Mother her rights in guardianship, if | told her how
she was being victimized, that | was being evicted from her home by this mafia and other matters.

In Pennsylvania and nationwide, there are NO requirements and NO standards for what a accurate
“evaluation” must be to determine incapacitation. This includes how long the “evaluation” must be, how
many guestions must be asked, accuracy of those questions, was it audio or video taped, etc. No recording
means NO proof it was ever done. Because no recording is ever made, the same report by the psychologist can
be used over and over for other victims by using cut and paste of one name for another, NO medical tests are
ever done. If a product is sold, but fake, it is fraud and a criminal offense. Weilheimer hired Ledakis to do
Mother’s “evaluation”. Ledakis used his made up “evaluation” and said Mother was “100% incapacitated”.
But, Ledakis said in his first “evaluation” Mother could live at home because Mother had no problems with
daily activities and with me living there for 2 years, everything was fine. But, on August 25 2021, Logie {originai
guardian of person and estate by weilheimer/jaskowiak) and Jsh kidnapped Mother from Mother’s home and
forced Mother to stay at ish’s home. There was NO court order for Mother to be kidnapped. ish and logie had
the local police there to keep me from interfering with their “plan”. | heard Mother crying and screaming “|
don’t want to go” many times. Two days after she was kidnapped, jsh dropped Mother off for a hair
appointment to Mother’'s weekly hairdresser of 16 years. While there, Mother (at 96) kept shaking and crying
and saying “I want to go home, | want to go home”. Jsh and logie never discussed such a inhuman and drastic
action with Mother or me. For almost two weeks, Mother was drugged, starved and tormented by Jsh. Jsh
refused to let Mother ieave or to see me or talk to me. While being held at jsh’s house, one day, Moather



collapsed and Mother had to be taken by ambulance, unconscious, to a hospital, confined to bed for six weeks
and treated for starvation. Mother had to get daily blood tests (42 times) and daily needles in the stomach (42
times). Mother got covid and could have died. Logie/jsh later dumped Mother in the low rated, covid infested
nursing home at $90,000 a year, compared to only $16,500 per year if Mother lived at home. Mother got covid
and major influenza at the nursing home where she could have died. | exposed ledskis’s “evaluation” in court
as a fraud. But, Weilheimer/ jaskowiak and jsh’s lawyer Camp praised and hired him many times for his lies he
wrote about me to reduce, restrict or deny my visits with Mother as punishment to me for exposing the scam,

Weilheimer/Jaskowiak put me in prison in 2021 and 2022, for exposing information about their scam on
Mother. In April 2024, Jaskowiak used a cop’s fake affidavit about me to put me in prison again, twice,
because | was protesting in front of Jaskowiak’s house, on a public sidewalk, exposing the mafia’s scam on
Mother. | had contacted the Montgomery County DA, Steele, and the FBI office in Ft. Washington many times
by email, phone and in person. They refused to open a case to help Mother and those of other families. But, in
December 2023, Gloria Byers, a guardian, was found guilty of stealing $1.5 million dollars from her 105
“ciients” {victims}. The FBI, IRS and the DO in Philadelphia prosecuted Byers.

Weiltheimer/Jaskowiak/Fenstermacher evicted me from Mother’s home in August 2023, which was
against Mother’s written wishes. | have been living in my car since then. | have been on welfare since about
May 2022. Weilheimer/Sterling/Jaskowiak/guardians kept Mother as a dog in a cage until she died alone, in a
horrible, agonizing, barbaric and inhumane morphine death. | was not able to see Mother for the last 8
months of her life because ! had to pay those paid liars money to see Mother for one hour to sit with us.
Weilheimer, sterling and jaskowiak deliberately were wasting my money and using the reports of lies by their
hand picked paid liars to restrict and deny me visits. They were constantly trying to ban my visits for life with
Mother as punishment for exposing their scam on Mother and many others. The mafia REFUSED to let me use
a ceill phone to record my visits with iviother to prove i did not “agitate” iviother or teii her things | was not
allowed to tell her. The mafia also REFUSED to ever file a petition to PROVE their accusations against me in
court. By ordering me not to tell Mother about the scam on her and her losing meney, the mafia wanted to
keep Mother ignorant of the mafia draining Mother's money.

| saw Mother only hours before she died. She was unconscious. She was bone thin. The mafia had 3
people at the nursing home watching me in her room as she was dying. Why? Just to cause me more pain.

| am also attaching weilheimer’s letter to me in early 2023 saying she is having the county IT person

(olivieri) block my email address to her office because weilheimer claimed | was emailing them to many times.
I was pro se and | had questions. But, weilheimer lied to me. By accident, the county IT person, olivieri, sent
weilheimer and me the same email. It said he {olivieri} did what weilheimer told him to do and block my email
address to all county agencies, including the county commissioners, sheriff, DA. | was in contact with those

- agencies to try to help my Mother. Weilheimer had NO iegal authority to do what she did. Despite my petition
for sterling to unblock my email to those people in late 2023, sterling refused to do so and my email is still
being biocked today, as was my access to the court docket whiie the scam was going on.

Out of a possibie 24,736 hours Mother and | couid have been together (16 hour days, 8 hours sieeping)
from August 25 2021 (Mother kidnapped by jsh/Logie) to Mother’s death on July 2 2024, this “mafia” only
allowed us 224 hours together.

What will it take for you to take action and clean up the corruption in orphans court that has been well
known for decades and has cost lives?

Arthur Herring Hl

tomlinher1925@tutanota.com 215.960.4447




To the Honorable Judge Carolyn Carluccio
President Judge, Montgomery County
Court of Common Pleas

November 14, 2023

Dear Judge Carluccio,

| am writing vou because vou are the President Judge and vou have administrative
supervisory powers of the court divisions. This matter involves a very tragic situation of
guardianship corruption in the Orphans Court that has occurred on my, now 98.5 year old
Mother, Jane Herring, 2021-x2110. The Orphans Court, in Norristown, has a decades long
history of corruption of cases involving corrupt guardians, corrupt lawyers and judges stealing
money from the victims through guardianships. My mother and | have always had a very close
and loving relationship. Because of what happened to my Mother, after she was faisely
guardianized, | created a very large news website www.protectmyparents.us that shows the
massive corruption of orphans courts and guardianships nationwide. | continue my fight to get
her back home to where she was living happily for 21 years in Souderton.

Because of the fake guardianship on her by Judge Weilheimer, various corrupt lawyers,
corrupt psychologists and corrupt guardians, since October 2021 my mother has been forced
to live in solitary confinement, in a sensory deprived environment in a tow rated nursing home
in Pottstown. She has not been allowed outside into society or allowed to go back to her large
3 bedroom, 3 bath house in a gated community to see her loved possessions by her past and
present guardians, their lawyers, Jaskowiak, my sister or by Weilheimer. | sent a packet of
documents to you in August about this matter, but | never got a response from you.

Because | had spent all of my money for a lawyer for only a short time when the petition
was first filed, | was pro se during the petition hearing. As a retired criminal investigator of 41
years, | proved the psychologist, Ledakis, had absolutely no proof of accuracy in his
“evaluation” of my Mother. He aiso never audio or videa recorded her session to prove he
ever gave it, what my Mother said or did not say or how she did on the tests that Ledakis gave
her. Ledakis also admitted all of his tests he simply downloaded from the internet and NONE
of them had any independent proof of accuracy. Because he never audio or videotaped his
“sessions” even his reports cannot be accepted as pertaining to a specific person, instead of
20, 50 or 500 other people by using a simple cut and paste of their names.

On August 6 2021, my Mother was declared “incapacitated” by Judge Weitheimer.

But, the problem is, it was only based on fraud. The one and only lawyer Weilheimer assigned
to Mother, laskowiak, refused to bring her in to testify for herself and he refused to bring in
any of the professionals she dealt with every year to show Mother had no problems to be
guardianized, including no medical issues, no financial issues, no unpaid bills, no bizaare check




amounts, no checks to strange people, no mental problems that would cause her to be a
danger to herself or others, etc. Those facts proved she did not need any guardians. Jaskowiak
refused to defend her against guardianship because Jaskowaik WANTED her to be
suardianized so he and others, operating as a “Racket” could then steal from her as is done
nationwide in guardianship corruption cases. Jaskowiak and the other lawyers of the guardians
have refused to follow Pennsylvania Rules of Conduct for lawyers and MOST important, Title
20, section 5521 that pertains directly to guardians, guardianships and how the victim is to be
treated. Pennsylvania is classified as the least restrictive state pertaining to demanding the
least restrictive way a person can be taken care of before guardianship.

Her daughter (then 70 and my sister) filed the petition only to take control of my
Mother and control of her vast estate, which often is the reason when a family member files
such baseless petitions. My sister has hated her mother and me (then 67) all of her life for
unknown reasons. She never put one example in her petition where my Mother needed
guardianship. Shortly after she filed it to be the guardian, she withdrew her name because |
had submitted a discovery list because | knew she had been stealing money from my Mother
far about 8 years since our father died. My sister found out about guardianship only because
Fenstermacher, my Mother’s and my trust lawyer of about 20 years and current guardian of
estate since May 2022, had been helping my sister to try to steal money from my Mother for
years. | always stopped those attempts. Weilheimer appointed Fenstermacher. In February
2023, Fenstermacher admitted in court he had not seen or talked to my Mother for about 2.5
years, but he has been making varicus and very serious financial decisions for her without
consuiting her. That is violating the Pennsylvania Rules of Conduct for lawyers.

Since then, Fenstermacher has approved unlimited money, for made up billing hours by
the ather guardian, pam Blumer, her husband Bill {lawyer and friend of Jaskowiak} and other
lawyers in Blumer’s large law firm, a “care manager” Deb Klock, who has a long history of over
drugging and theft from her clients and Jaskowiak.

My Mother was kidnapped (taken away by force, against her will, for monetary gain)
from her home on August 25 2021 by my sister and first guardian Logie. When Logie arrived
that day he brought 2 local police to hold me on the porch while my mother was kidnapped
by my sister. | saw and heard my mother screaming and crying saying she did not want to go
with my sister. My sister admitted in court she never discussed filing the petition with my
mother or me. She said she did not think it was that important. During the almost 2 weeks
Mother was held as a prisoner at my sister’'s home, my Mother was deprived of going back
home and was not allowed to see or talk to me while she was kept at my sister’s house.
Mother was forced on anti depressents the first day she was there because she did not want

happened. Two days later, Weilheimer threatened me on the phone with prison if | ever called
for another wellness check. Why? That same day, Mother's weekly hairdresser of 16 years said
after my sister dropped her off for a appointment, Mother was shaking and crying saying “I



want to go home, | want to go home”. After about 2 weeks of being imprisoned by my sister,
my Mother had to be taken to the hospital, unconscious, by ambulance, confined to bed for 6
weeks, treated for starvation, daily blood tests (42 times), daily needles in the stomach (42
times) to prevent blood clots. At week 5 in the hospital, my mother got covid where she could
have died. '

At week 6, Logie dumped Mother into a low rated nursing home that had just opened
after a massive covid outbreak. Months later, Mother would also get covid and influenza
because of massive outbreaks there. Again, she could have died from them. Since October
2021, she has been held as basically a prisoner in a locked in section for no reason. Ledakis
said in his original report Mother had no problems with daily activities and with me living
there for about 1.5 years and seeing her everyday for dinner since my father died 7 years
before, everything was fine. In fact, my mother was still driving her car safely and her primary
doctor of 21 years never said she should stop driving. That doctor saw Mother about 1 month
after the petition was filed and there were no medical or any other issues at all. At that time,
Mother was only taking a very low dosage pill for blood pressure. Nothing else.

| have been trying to get my mother back home for over 2 years. Weilheimer, jaskowial
guardians, their lawyers, a “care manager” and my sister (Racket) have refused to let her go
back home to enjoy her life, freedom and loved possessions. No reasons given. Because |
exposed the Racket’s fake guardianship just for Mother's money and her house, they have

been slowly denving me visits, had eliminated phone calls with Mother and have demanded

i

paid “monitors” {friends of Blumer) since November 2022 to write lies in their reports about
me of what they claim | say to my mother and claiming for 2 years | “agitated” my mother. No
one has ever asked my Mother if that was true. She has never refused any of my visits or
nhone calls. The fact is, in front of staff, she has cried openly when she sees me on visits. The
“Racket” has never had one person from the facility in court or write in their reports that | did
agitate Mother. That is called here say. It is all about “demonizing” a person with lies to keep
them from their loved one. That tactic is used nationwide by corrupt guardians to keep

many, many problems at the facility and to Mother, but the guardians and their lawyers refuse
to correct them. But, the Racket use my complaining to make massive billing hours for
themselves. That tactic is also used nationwide by other corrupt guardians and corrupt
lawyers.

The cost of the nursing home is about $90,000 a year compared to the court accepted
cost of Mother’s home of only 516,500 a year. There is a complete spare bedrcom and
bathroom for any day care worker to use if Mother ever needs their help. There is NO reason
why Mother, at 98.5, should be kept locked in a tiny section and away from society and
freedom. Such confinement deeply affects her mental and physical abilities.

About mid 2022, Weilheimer was rotated out of orphans court and into civil court. But,
she kept Mother’s case and probably other such cases with people with a lot of money. My



Mother’s house value is about $500,000 and she had about $2 million in liquid assets before
this guardianship scam on her. Weilheimer continued to make rulings and orders, all against
the benefit and health to my Mother. Several months ago, | filed a complaint against
Weilheimer with the Judicial Conduct Board for corruption and | filed complaints against
laskowiak and Fenstermacher for corruption. Fenstermacher is approving all invoices by the
Racket without justification and refusing to let my Mother come back home or go to a much
nicer, much bigger and much cheaper place to live, especially to save her money, for her
health and wellbeing. He has been wasting her money on a guardianship fraud. Abhout 9
months ago, Fenstermacher signed off to sell Mother’s house, without asking her, which
violates Title 20, section 5521 and the Rules of conduct for lawyers in Pennsylvania. He had me
evicted on August 25 2023 and has refused to give Mother’s gift money to me that she gave to
her children for 7 years instead of presents and Fenstermacher gave to us for the past 2 years
from Mother. Because | spent about $100,000 on legal and other costs to bring mother home,
| have been on welfare for over a year and since Fenstermacher had me evicted, | have to live
in my car.

About (guessing) several months ago, Weilheimer was replaced by Judge Sterling. But, |
was told a order was signed recently by Weilheimer. | have been told by various lawyers that
after Weilheimer was rotated out of orphans court and into civil court, any orders or rulings,
including evicting me, are null and void. Since you are President Judge and you have
administrative supervisory powers, | need your help to help my mather get justice and to void
those orders and other decisions by Weilheimer since Weilheimer was rotated out of orphans
court.

i had contacted the DA’s office about 2 years ago about this guardianship corruption,
but Det. Shade refused to open a case. He also refused to call all of the people back who had
their cases of loved ones being scammed by fake guardianships in Montgomery County. Shade
then told Weilheimer that | wanted to file a complaint against her for corruption. On
November 13 2023, | contacted Det. Kelly of the DA’s office. He also refused to open a case on
Weilheimer, the guardianship corruption on my Mother and also what Weilheimer had the
county [T person, Olivieri, do for her. About June 2023, Weilheimer had Olivieri block my email
address to her office and to all county agencies, including DA, sheriff, politicians, elder
agencies and many others. Weilheimer did so as retaliation for me exposing her and the
guardianship corruption on people in orphans court and to greatly delay my abilities to help
Mother. Kelly has also refused to calt back those same people who contacted Shade.

Weilheimer also had my court docket biocked so | could not see my documents to this
day. | filed a petition a week ago demanding she unblock my email address. Agent Pacchioli,
FBI, also has refused to open a case of guardianship corruption on Mother and has refused to
call the many people who have called them with their cases of guardianship corruption. | had
supplied the DA and the FBI with many, many documents. The FBI claims it is a civil matter, not



criminal. Financial exploitation of the elderly is a criminal matter. Some of those documents i
am enclosing.

Jaskowiak and Weilheimer put me into prison twice in 2022, because | put information
on my news website exposing their guardianship scam. In October 2019, Jaskowiak bragged in
a legal seminar about guardianship that he uses contempt of court and prison to get his way
and to make money. He did that twice on me. Weilheimer put me into prison twice for about 3
weeks total time for exposing the guardianship scam on my Mother.

| am hoping my information and supplied documents will prove my Mother should not he
allowed to rot in a tocked in section until she becomes broke, a vegetable and dies because of
lack of care and over drugging as another victim of guardianship corruption. i need you and
your authority as president Judge to void all of those orders and all decisions by Weilheimer
since she was rotated out of orphans court because she is no longer in orphans court.
Mother’'s husband and my father worked extremely hard all of his life and made money for his
wife and children to live well. His/Mother’'s money is NOT the Racket’s money to steal just so
THEY can have a higher life style.

On November 13 2023, Gelsinger, one of the many lawyers pam hlumer, guardian of
person to Mother and her husband is close friends to her husband Bill, hired and my Mother
has to pay for, emailed me to say mother had a serious fall recently and has many bruises. He
did not give any details or say when it happened. Mother has fallen before on the waxed floors
and she hit her head, but neither the nursing home, Blumer or jaskowiak ever demanded her
head be xrayed, only her hip. | had bought her no slip socks to prevent that, but the staff
refuses to put them on her. Blumer and logie refuse to put a phone in her tiny room or to get
her a medical alert necklace in case she falls, heart attack, etc. The staff is basically never at
their desk to hear her. If mother was at home, she has carpets and | would usually be there to
take her to the hospital if needed.

Also, EXTREMELY important, to this day, there was NO written order by Weilheimer to
have my Mother kidnapped from her home and in secrecy from me on August 25 2021. WHO
ordered the kidnapping of a 96 vear old woman and WHY? Was it Logie, Weilheimer or
Jaskowiak? Did Weilheimer order it WITHOUT writing an order? If so, WHY did Weilheimer do
so? If it was not jaskowaik, WHY would he let such a drastic thing happen to his 96 year old
client and not order Mother back home as Ledakis said she could stay for Mother’s wellness
and happiness? In Logies notes, he referred to it as the “plan” several times to other lawyers
and to my sister. That proves it was only to get Mother’s money and her house as part of the
guardianship corruption scam. The guardianship scam on people includes the guardian selling
the house extremely cheap to a friend who then resells it at full value. The Racket keeps the
profit and the victim and their family never know it was resold for a much higher price and
they lost that money.

My email is tomlinher1925@tutanota.com. My phone is 215.960.4447,




Sincerely,

Rev. Arthur Herring IlI



EXHIBITS

1. Weilheimer letter to me saying she blocked my email address to her office.

2. Olivieri’s email to weilheimer saying he blocked my email address to all county
agencies. T

3. Title 20, section 5521 per guardians and guardianships.

4. Part of Ledakis report saying Mother had no problem with daily activities and
she could stay at home.

5. Before the trial for my first contempt of court charge, | asked jaskowiak several
times that since Ledakis said Mother could stay at home, why isn’t she at
home? He did not respond. Then he said a few days later, he would tell me at

my hearing. Jaskowaik never did. He told Weilheimer he wanted me in prison
for 6 months for exposing my mother’s name and violating her privacy. But, he
knew people can be murdered in prison. Was that how desparate he was to
have the son of his client murdered just so he can steal her money?

6. My mother’s note to Fenstermacher, about 2 years before the petition was filed
saying she always wants me to live in her house.

7. Another note by mother saying how much she trusts me for her care. She wrote
that about the same time as #6.

0

. Another note written by Mother saying she wants me to care for her if she ever

9.Pictures of my Mother about one year before she was guardianized by
Weilheimer and forced to live in the nursing home in solitary confinement and in
a sensory deprived environment for 2 years now.

10. My mother only one year after she was forced to live at the nursing home with



no freedom and not allowed into society or go home to see her possessions of
98 years.



July 27, 2023

To The Honorable Carolyn Carluccio
Montgomery County Court

Your Honer,

As President Judge, there is an urgent matter that needs your attention. The matter involves my 98 year
old Mother who is a victim of guardianship corruption. The Case is 2021-x2110. The case is in Judge
Weilheimer’s court.

| am a 69 year old man, with 41 years of doing lie detection testing nationwide. My Mother and | have
always had a very close and loving relationship, especially since my Father died 10 years ago.

The narrative i enciosed expiains the detaiis of this scam since it started in May 2021. My sister filed a
petition for guardianship on my Mother only to get her house and her money. She has tried that several times
since my Father died 10 years ago, but | always stopped them. My sister has never wanted to be close to me.

My sister filed the petition with the assistance of my Mother’s trust lawyer of 21 years, Ronald
Fenstermacher, who is now guardian of estate. Judge Weilheimer assigned David Jaskowiak to be my Mother’s
lawyer. He never informed my Mother and | we could have our own lawyer. My Mother has more than
enough money for her own lawyer. He also never allowed me to be with my Mother during his meetings with
her and never made notes for us to review later. My mother only has a small instant recall and slight
forgetfulness issue.

She had no problems with daiiy activities, stiii drove her car safeiy, no canes or waiker, no diapers, no
dentures, was in excellent health and went to all of her doctor’s appointments. She lived in a large 3 bedroom,
3 bath house in a private gated community. The house was paid for in cash. She had no financial issues. All her
taxes were paid on time, no bounced checks or ones written in strange amounts to strange people. Since my
father died, I spent 6 hours everyday with her for dinner. At her request, about three years ago, | moved into
her home because she liked us together. My Mother lived off of my father’s social security. She always gave
each of us $14,000 a year in gifts.

At the petition hearing | was pro se because | did not have the money for a lawyer. jaskowaik refused to
bring Mother into court so she could speak for herself and never brought in anyone that Mother deait with
during the year who would have said she did not need a guardian. As a lawver, he did not defend her or
protect her from being guardianized. As you will see in detail in my narrative, Jaskowiak did not defend
Mother against being guardianized because he wanted her to be guardianized as part of the Racket that has
existed for two decades in the Montgomery County Orphans Court. Facebook has a huge section about it
called Shenanigans in the Montgomery County Court. Because of this guardianship scam on my Mother, |
created a hug website about guardianship corruption calied protectmyparents.us.

Psychologist, George Ledakis, testified about his “evaluation” on Mother. He claimed in his report she
was “100% incapacitated. But, his numbers did not add up to that by a long shot. He claimed she had no
problems with daily activities, she could stay at home and with me there for over a year, everything was fine.
When it was my turn to question him, | asked many detailed questions. | discovered and showed that in
Pennsylvania, there are NO standards or requirements as to what is a accurate “evaluation” to determine
incapacitation. | also proved, by his answers, he had NO independent proof of accuracy of his “evaluation”. He
also admitted he does not audio or video record his “evaluations” to prove what the person said or did not



say, how they said it, etc. Even his “reports” could not be proven to belong to a person and not just copied for
everybody. The fact is, guardianship corruption is so high nationwide, it is at epidemic proportions.

As | have found out for the past two years, the Orphans Court in Norristown has been known for at [east
20 years as being corrupt in guardianships. Corrupt judges, hire corrupt lawyers who will not defend their
clients, corrupt psychologists will be hired to claim people are “100% incapacitated”, the judge and lawyer will
hire corrupt guardians, who then hire corrupt lawyers and a corrupt “care manager” will all be hired to make
up false billing hours to drain the victims money. The victim will be put into a low rated nursing home to die
drugged and broke. Their house is sold to a friend at a very low price, then resold at the normal price and the
profit is added to the pot. The family will usually be denied to be with their spouses or parents by the guardian
because the guardian thinks they are a threat to him. Nationwide, there are no limits on how many victims a
person can have, Some have 200, 300 or more victims.

My Mother is one of those victims. The first guardian put her into a tiny, one room “pig pen”, in solitary
confinement, in a sensory deprived environment, no phone, no visitors, no access to reading materials, has
not been allowed outside for two years, etc. My sister, 72, is fine with that. About three weeks after my
Mother was declared “incapacitated”, my sister and the guardian, Logie {friend of Jaskowiak) kidnapped my
Mother from her house, screaming and crying, and was kept for two weeks at my sister’s house. After | had
called for a police wellness check that night, Weilheimer threatened me with contempt of court if | called for a
second wellness check, no reason given. Mother was denied to leave and denied to see me or call me. After
two weeks, Mother had to be taken to the hospital, by ambulance, unconscious, confined to bed for 6 weeks
and treated for starvation and then covid. At week 6, Logie dumped Mother in Manatawny Manor near
Pottstown.

I have learned how powerful the Racket is in the Orghans Court. Because | exposed the fraud of fake
guardianships, ludge Weilheimer, Jaskowaik and the guardians have done many things against me, inciuding
putting me in prison twice for exposing the fraud with my news webhsite and on a radio show lamononce ina
while. They have limited my visits from 3, one hour visits a week, to 2 a week. The other day, Weilheimer,
based only on fake monitor reports and a recent “evaluation” by the same psychologist who used his
“evaluation” he made up at the petition hearing, now says I am the problem to Mother when | am there and
when | am not there. But, again nobody asked Mother. Remember, Mother only had a small forgettulness and
a little instant recall issue when my sister and Logie kidnapped her. Pennsylvania law believes in the LEAST
restrictive type of living for a person, NOT prison and isolation as the Racket has kept her for 2 years. NO
doctor would say isolation and no exercise is good health for ANY person, young or old. Because of the recent
report by Ledakis, Weilheimer says | can only see my Mother 2 times a MONTH and NO phone calls. | must still
pay Blumer’s hand picked person 575 for my one hour visit and she will be sitting next to us writing lies like
she has done to ban me from all of my visits. Weilheimer and the Racket has REFUSED to let me use my cell
phone to record my visit to prove what | say to Mother. Cell phones are free and do not lie. Paid monitors,
who want extra money every week, will as a easy job. Weilheimer has REFUSED to iet me know what the
monitors quaiifications are to iisten, make accurate notes, make accurate guotes, whiie listening, etc. i went
from having unlimited calls every day with my Mother to none last year. | originally had lunch with my Mother
on my visits, then they were stopped in mid 2022 by a new guardian, Pam blumer, who was picked by
Jaskowiak to be the new guardian of person, who then hired her husband as her lawyer, who then hired about
5 lawyers from his law firm. A “care manager” hired by Logie, Deb Klock (has a long history of theft and
overdruggings to her victims) was kept on by Blumer. Blumer claimed the never named “staff” said | got my
Mother “agitated” after my visits, but they never asked Mother. Mother has the right to deny my phone calls
and deny my visits. She never did. They used that lie to further deny me visits with my Mother and to make
me look like a evil person.



Basic US law says a person is innocent until proven guilty in a court of law and a person has the right to
face their accusers. The Racket never did that. The law also says if a person does not agree to something they
cannot be billed for it. My ex-lawyer and | never agreed to let Blumer hire all the people Blumer wanted and
Mother wouid pay for them. That is part of how corrupt guardianships work to steal money. All of those
lawyers are draining hundreds of thousands of doliars tfrom Mother. Mother’s room is costing her $90,000 a
year for a smali bed, old furniture, a toilet and three small meals a day. Mother basically sleeps all day in a bed
or in a chair. She does not look at TV because it does not get any channels she used to watch. There is a much,
much larger side and many much nicer facilities for the basically “normal” people on the other side where
Mother has been housed with people who have mental and behavior problems. Why does blumer, jaskowaik,
Klock and my sister want to keep Mother in a tiny room until she dies?

| have spent every day since August 25 2021 fighting to bring Mother home where Ledakis originally said
Mother should be. | was put into prison twice by Weilheimer and Jaskowiak because | was exposing the scam
of guardianship corruption as a investigative reporter. | have spent well over $100,000 on various lawyer fees
to get Mother home or to a much bigger and much more beautiful piace to live at haif the cost of where she is
a prisoner now. POW’s have more priviledges than Mother has now. People in prison for all types of crimes
have more priviledges than Mother has now. Why? | spent a great deal of money for gas to go there, for food
for our lunches, newspapers and magazines so she can read them, gifts, tons of flowers, etc.

Pennsylvania law Title 20 Section 5521 is very specific. See attached. It spells out how guardians should
treat their clients and how guardianships must be done, NONE of the guardians, their lawyers, jaskowiak,
Klock or Weilheimer have obeyed that iaw. it is disgusting and despicable how they have been treating my 98
year old Mother while spending all of her money.

Very soon | will be evicted from my Mother's house. All of my Mother’s loved possessions will be thrown
out because she has NO room for anything in her tiny room. She has no tabies and she has {0 put things on the
floor in plastic bags. Why should she have to live like a mouse in a cage? She had a large house in a private
gated community worth about $475,000 and about $1.8 million with a investment company about 4 years
ago. Now, the guardians and lawyers want to sell her house so they can continue to invent massive invoices to
steal from her. and the guardian of Mother’s estate for over a year refuses to give me any money to help me
to live. | have heen on welfare for over a year because | spent all of my money only to see mother and buy her
things to make her day happy. | never know when she might die or totally lose her memory. | have not seen
my Mother for aimost 4 months.

Is she crying every night because she thinks | do not love her anymore, does she think | do not want to
drive to see her? | never missed any of my visit days for 2 years and always called her 2x a day when | was
allowed. Qut of a possible 16 hours per day (8 hours for sleeping) since August 25 to July 1 2023, out of a
possible 11,248 possible hours | could have been with mother, Weitheimer and the guardians have only
allowed me 216 to see my own Mother, now 98.

For more punishment and harassment because | exposed the scam, about two months ago, Weilheimer

had the county T person block my access to my court docket, as | have been pro se for about 4 months. About
a month ago, Weilheimer had the county IT person block my email address to her office and to ALL county
agencies, including the DA’s office (who | have been in contact with} and county politicians.

Your Honor, my ex-lawyer had asked Weilheimer twice to recuse herself from my case for her obvious
hate of me and her obvious part in this scam. She always refused. Why? This is a very simple case. Any judge
can handle it. No children are involved. | have been told that if a judge is rotated out of their section (orphans
court to civil court) they cannot keep any of their old cases and any orders they issued are void. This type of
horrible, inhuman and barbaric treatment to my Mother by Weilheimer and the Racket must stop. Read my
lengthly narrative to see how the DA’s office has been protecting Weilheimer, her corruption and the



guardians and lawyers involvement in this scam. What they are doing are various crimes, including financial
exploitation of the elderly, bank fraud, fraud, wire fraud, isolation, elder abuse and more.

Please help my mother by having a new judge or mediator to handle the case. Allow my Mother to speak
for herself and all of the guardians and their lawyers, jaskowiak and Klock must be replaced for the benefit of
my Mother’s heaith, happiness and mentat weltare.

Sincerely,
Rev. Arthur herﬂring i
215.960.4447



EXHIBITS
Pictures of Mother

Pennsyivania state law that spells out how guardians must treat their clients and how guardianships must be
done.

Ledakis first report, 3 weeks before the petition hearing, said Mother couid live at home and with me
there everything was fine. So why was she kidnapped a month later by my sister and logie? There was
no court order by Weilheimer and 1 have asked all guardians, their lawyers and Jaskowiak, but NOBODY
answers. Why?

Mother’s hand written note saying she wants me to live at her house if I want to way before
psychologist ctaimed Jane was claimed to be “incapacited” with one of his so-called “evaluations”
that he admitted in court had no independent proof of accuracy..

Mother’s hand written note saying how much she trusts me for her care way before ledakis claimed
she was “incapacitated” with his so-called made up “evaluation” that he admitted in court had no
independent proof of accuracy.

Mother wanted to go home, back to her normal life. She wrote this letter saying she wants to go home,
me live there with her, wants a new lawyer, Weitheimer accepted it, but | do not think it was allowed
as evidence. Ledakis ciaimed he did not think she wrote it, but he never asked her if those items were
what she wanted. Why? My ex-lawyer tried twice to get my Mother into court to speak for herself, but
Weilheimer refused. Mother’s sentences in her letter were straight across. They are angled here
because of the way the document was scanned.

Letter by Weilheimer telling me she had the county IT person block my email to her staff.
Letter from the county IT person, Olivieri, telling Weilheimer's legal assistant that he blocked my email

address to ALL county agencies, including politicians, DA office, etc. That is harassment and illegal using
the courts as a weapon.
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